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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA
ALEXANDRIA DIVISION

FIRE FIGHTER LAUREANO AVILA-MORA,

9512 Silas Drive
Nokesville, VA 20181

FIRE FIGHTER ANDREW BROWN,

7 Black Forest Lane
Lovettsville, VA 20180

FIRE FIGHTER HANH DENISTON,

1116 Oakwood Drive
Colonial Heights, VA 23834

CAPTAIN JEFFREY FERFOLIA,

609 Johnston Place
Alexandria, VA 22301

FIRE FIGHTER KENDRA HOWEY,

130 Montandon Lane
Berkeley Springs, WV 25411

FIRE FIGHTER SHAWN LYNCH,

311 Saint Andrews Lane
Westminster, MD 21158

CAPTAIN JOSEPH SCARPONE,

3574 S Stafford St
Arlington, VA 22206

MASTER FIRE FIGHTER MATTHEW
WESCHLER, and

6825 Winona Place
Hughesville, MD 20637

MASTER FIRE FIGHTER DAVID
WIELGOSZ

CIVIL ACTION NO. 1:22-cv-1046

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
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6921 Quail Run
Hurlock, MD 21643

Plaintiffs,

V.

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON
AIRPORTS AUTHORITY,

1 Aviation Circle
Washington, DC 20001

FIRE CHIEF DENISE POUGET (In her official
and individual capacity),

1 Aviation Circle
Washington, DC 20001

ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF STEVEN GERVIS
(In his official and individual capacity), and

1 Aviation Circle
Washington, DC 20001

ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF DANIEL REDMAN
(In his official and individual capacity)

1 Aviation Circle
Washington, DC 20001

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF FIRST AMENDMENT RIGHTS

Plaintiffs, employed as fire fighters by the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority
(“MWAA”) in the Washington Airports Authority Fire & Rescue Department (“FRD”) at Reagan
Washington National Airport and Dulles International Airport and members of the International

Association of Fire Fighters (“IAFF” or “Union”) and Officers and Executive Board Members of
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IAFF Local 3217 MWAA Professional Firefighters (“Local 3217”), by and through counsel,
hereby state as follows:

INTRODUCTION

The First Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that “Congress shall make
no law . . . abridging the freedom of speech . . . or the right of the people to peaceably assemble.’
U.S. Const. Amend. I. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution makes this
prohibition applicable to the states. Moreover, the First Amendment protects not only the
affirmative right to speak, but also the equally important right to be free from retaliation by public
officials for the exercise of that right. Likewise, the state cannot take action that effectively chills
an individual’s First Amendment rights.

To inform the public of safety concerns over the staffing levels of fire fighters at MWAA’s
airports, and to publicize their labor dispute with FRD management, Plaintiffs, in their capacity as
Local 3217 Officers and Executive Board Members, drafted a resolution censuring MWAA Vice
President of Public Safety Bryan Norwood, FRD Fire Chief Denise Pouget, FRD Assistant Chief
Daniel Redman, and FRD Assistant Chief Steven Gervis. Plaintiffs then introduced the censure
resolution at the IAFF’s 56" Convention where it was approved unanimously in August 2022.

Plaintiffs intended to send the censure resolution to the MWAA Board of Directors;
MWAA President and CEO John E. Potter; the appointers of the MWAA Board of Directors —
President Joseph R. Biden, Maryland Governor Larry Hogan, Virginia Governor Glenn Youngkin
and Mayor of the District of Columbia Muriel Bowser; the Mayor of Alexandria City; the
Chairman of the Board for Arlington, Fairfax and Loudoun Counties; The Board of Supervisors

for Arlington, Fairfax and Loudoun Counties; and the City Council of Alexandria. Plaintiffs also
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intended to publicize the censure resolution, their labor dispute, and their public safety concerns
to a reporter from The Washington Post.

Defendants Pouget, Gervis and Redman have undertaken a campaign of terror in an effort
to silence the Plaintiffs from continuing to exercise their First Amendment free speech rights to
speak on matters of public concern and to retaliate against them for exercising their First
Amendment free speech rights to date. First, in response to learning about the Plaintiffs drafting a
censure resolution, Pouget, Gervis and/or Redman filed an anonymous workplace complaint
against Local 3217 President Shawn Lynch and Vice President Hanh Deniston over “IAFF
Complaints” that has led to a disciplinary investigation by an outside legal counsel. Then, once
the censure resolution was approved at the IAFF Convention, Pouget, Gervis and Redman
responded by threatening a frivolous defamation lawsuit against the Plaintiffs. These retaliatory
actions have had the effect of chilling the Plaintiffs’ right to engage in First Amendment protected
speech and activity.

Consequently, Plaintiffs seek the Court’s intervention to ensure that they can exercise their
rights guaranteed under the First Amendment without retaliation or threats of economic harm.
This relief includes a permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from retaliating against,
intimidating or taking adverse employment actions against Plaintiffs for exercising their
constitutional free speech rights, as well enjoining Defendants from pursuing a retaliatory
disciplinary investigation against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston.

Jurisdiction and Venue

1. This action arises under the First and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States

Constitution and the Civil Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. §8 1983 and 1988.
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2. This Court has original jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§88
1331 and 1343. This Court has authority to award the requested damages pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§
1343; the requested declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 2201-02; and costs
and attorneys’ fees under 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

3. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8§ 1391(b) because the

retaliatory and chilling conduct of Defendants took place in this district.

Parties

4. Plaintiff Laureano Avila-Mora is employed as a fire fighter with FRD and is a Vice
President of Local 3217. Mr. Avila-Mora resides at 9512 Silas Drive, Nokesville, VA 20181.

5. Plaintiff Andrew Brown is employed as a fire fighter with FRD and is an Executive
Board Member of Local 3217. Mr. Brown resides at 7 Black Forest Lane, Lovettsville, VA 20180.

6. Plaintiff Hanh Deniston is employed as a fire fighter with FRD and is a Vice
President of Local 3217. Mr. Deniston resides at 1116 Oakwood Drive, Colonial Heights, VA
23834

7. Plaintiff Kendra Howey is employed as a fire fighter with FRD and is an Executive
Board Member of Local 3217. Ms. Howey resides at 130 Montandon Lane, Berkeley Springs, WV
25411

8. Plaintiff Jeffrey Ferfolia is employed as a Captain with FRD and is an Executive
Board Member of Local 3217. Mr. Ferfolia resides at 609 Johnston Place, Alexandria, VA 22301

9. Plaintiff Shawn Lynch is employed as a fire fighter with FRD and is the President
of Local 3217. Mr. Lynch resides at 311 Saint Andrews Lane, Westminster, MD 21158.

10.  Plaintiff Joseph Scarpone is employed as a Captain with FRD and is an Executive

Board Member of Local 3217. Mr. Scarpone resides at 3574 S Stafford St, Arlington, VA 22206.
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11.  Plaintiff Matthew Weschler is employed as a master fire fighter with FRD and is
an Executive Board Member of Local 3217. Mr. Weschler resides at 6825 Winona Place,
Hughesville, MD 20637

12.  Plaintiff David Wieglosz is employed as a master fire fighter with FRD and is an
Executive Board Member of Local 3217. Mr. Wieglosz resides at 6921 Quail Run, Hurlock, MD
21643.

13. Defendant Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority (“MWAA?”) is a public
body created and given authority by legislative action of Virginia, the District of Columbia, and
Congress. See D.C. Code 8§88 9-901 et seq. ; Va. Code 885.1-152 et seq.; 49 U.S.C. § 49104 et seq.
MWAA is “independent of Virginia and its local governments, the District of Columbia, and the
United States Government.” 49 U.S.C. § 49106(a)(2). It is “a political subdivision constituted only
to operate and improve the Metropolitan Washington Airports as primary airports serving the
Metropolitan Washington area.” Id. § 49106(a)(3). The MWAA is a municipality. It is located at
1 Aviation Circle, Washington, DC 20001. Defendant MWAA operates the Washington Airports
Authority Fire & Rescue Department (“FRD”) which provides fire and public safety services at
Reagan Washington National Airport, 2401 Smith Boulevard, Arlington, Virginia 22202 and
Dulles International Airport, 1 Saarinen Circle, Dulles, Virginia 20166. MWAA operates out of
offices located at operates out of 1 Aviation Circle, Washington, DC 20001.

14. Defendant Denise Pouget is the Fire Chief of the MWAA FRD. In her role as the
MWAA FRD Fire Chief, Defendant Pouget is a public official. Plaintiffs bring their claims against
Defendant Pouget in her official and individual capacity. Ms. Pouget operates out of offices located

at 1 Aviation Circle, Washington, DC 20001.
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15.  Defendant Steven Gervis is the Assistant Fire Chief of the MWAA FRD. In his role
as the MWAA FRD Assistant Fire Chief, Defendant Gervis is a public official. Plaintiffs bring
their claims against Defendant Gervis in his official and individual capacity. Mr. Gervis operates
out of offices located at 1 Aviation Circle, Washington, DC 20001.

16.  Defendant Daniel Redman is the Assistant Fire Chief of the MWAA FRD. In his
role as the MWAA FRD Assistant Fire Chief, Defendant Redman is a public official. Plaintiffs
bring their claims against Defendant Redman in his official and individual capacity. Mr. Redman
operates out of offices located at 1 Aviation Circle, Washington, DC 20001.

Factual Background

17.  The lAFFis an international labor union with more than 330,000 members engaged
in fire fighting, emergency medical or rescue service activities, or related services throughout the
United States and Canada.

18.  Two significant goals of the IAFF and its affiliates are to educate the public on all
matters relating to fire and emergency services, while advocating for improvements in these and
all related areas.

19.  One way in which these goals are met is through ongoing communication with the
communities served by IAFF affiliates and the greater public on matters of concern, including
public safety and other related issues.

20. IAFF affiliates, such as Local 3217, use the Union’s censure resolution process to
communicate their concerns relating to management of fire and emergency services, as well as
related public safety issues.

21. The resolution process includes an initial draft by the involved IAFF affiliate. The

draft resolution is then submitted to the IAFF for review and revision in consultation with its legal
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counsel. The resolution review process includes confirming that documentation and other
information provide support for any factual allegations being made in the resolution.

22.  After the resolution review process, a final version of the resolution is prepared for
approval by the IAFF affiliate.

23.  Thereafter, the proposed resolution is presented for consideration by a resolutions
committee comprised of representatives from IAFF affiliates at the IAFF Convention. The
resolutions committee prepares a report with a recommendation as to whether the resolution should
be adopted by the IAFF through a vote of the Union’s delegates at the IAFF Convention.

24.  All adopted resolutions are subsequently published in the IAFF monthly magazine
to communicate the resolution’s message to the IAFF membership, the communities served by the
IAFF affiliates and to the general public.

25. In addition, the IAFF affiliate that submits the resolution may also include specific
persons, entities and/or organizations to which the resolution should be sent as a further means to
effectively communicate the message contained in the resolution.

26.  The IAFF conducted its 56 Convention on August 8-12, 2022, in Ottawa, Ontario,
Canada.

27.  In the months preceding the Union’s Convention, IAFF affiliates, including IAFF
Local 3217, drafted and submitted proposed resolutions that were reviewed in the manner
discussed above and eventually presented to the IAFF delegates at the Convention to consider and
vote on whether to adopt the resolutions. A copy of the Resolution submitted by Local 3217 and
approved at the IAFF Convention (“Local 3217 Resolution”) is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

28.  The Local 3217 Resolution, which Plaintiffs assisted in preparing, addressed

several public safety concerns with respect to the operations of the FRD under the leadership of
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Defendants: Fire Chief Denise Pouget and Assistant Fire Chiefs Daniel Redman and Steven
Gervais.

29.  Specifically, the Local 3217 Resolution focused on concerns over staffing
shortages and how these shortages adversely impacted the safety of the general public and fire
fighters represented by Local 3217 and negatively affected the level of service and standard of
care provided by the FRD.

30.  The Local 3217 Resolution specifically indicated that several individuals and/or
entities should be notified of the resolutions and the concerns contained therein, including
Defendants, all affiliates of the IAFF, the MWAA Board of Directors, the MWAA President and
CEO, the appointees of the MWAA Board of Directors, President of the United States, Joseph R.
Biden, Maryland Governor Larry Hogan, Virginia Governor Glenn Youngkin and Mayor of the
District of Columbia Muriel Bowser.

31.  The Local 3217 Resolution also indicated that the following entities should be
notified of the resolution and the concerns contained therein: The Mayor of Alexandria City, the
Chairman of the Board for Arlington, Fairfax and Loudoun Counties, the Board of Supervisors for
Arlington, Fairfax and Loudoun Counties and the City Council of Alexandria, as well as the AFL-
CIO Executive Committee and the International Association of Fire Chiefs (IAFC).

32. Upon learning that the Plaintiffs had drafted the resolution, Defendant Redman told
a Local 3217 bargaining unit member who was also the spouse of a Local 3217 Executive Board
member that the Local 3217 Executive Board was going to have to answer for the resolution.
Defendant Redman also suggested that there would be work related ramifications as a result of the

resolution.
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33. Immediately subsequent to this threatening statement, upon information and belief,
Pouget, Gervis and/or Redman submitted an anonymous, baseless workplace harassment and
hostile work environment complaint to MWAA against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston because
they drafted and supported the resolution.

34.  After the Local 3217 Resolution was approved at the IAFF Convention but before
the resolution could be published in the IAFF magazine or distributed to the individuals and entities
named above, Defendants sent a letter dated August 31, 2022, through legal counsel, to Plaintiffs,
as well as other IAFF representatives, threatening them with a lawsuit for defamation and
unidentified “other torts” over the introduction and adoption of the Local 3217 Resolution at the
IAFF Convention. A copy of the August 31, 2022, letter is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

35. In their August 31% letter, Defendants demanded that the Local 3217 Resolution be
retracted and removed from wherever it had been published. Defendants also demanded a formal
apology and retraction online, electronically and in writing. Finally, Defendants demanded that
all the entities discussed above who were notified of the Local 3217 Resolution be provided a copy
of the apology and retraction.

36.  When they made this threat of litigation, Defendants knew or reasonably should
have known that nothing in the Local 3217 Resolution was false or defamatory.

37. Two days after Defendants’ letter threatening Plaintiffs with litigation, an outside
legal counsel sent letters to Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston notifying them that they were
conducting a disciplinary investigation into the workplace harassment and hostile workplace
complaint that weas filed against them. As further evidence that the anonymous complaint was
filed by Pouget, Gervis and/or Redman, the subject matter of the investigation by the outside

counsel were the “IAFF Complaints” and MWAA had never hired an outside legal counsel to

10
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conduct a workplace complaint at FRD before, indicating that the complaint was filed by high-
level FRD management employees Pouget, Gervis and/or Redman. Thus, Defendants’ baseless
complaint has led to an unwarranted investigation of Plaintiffs by outside legal counsel and the
further threat of discipline. A copy of the letter notifying Lynch and Deniston of the investigation
by outside legal counsel is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

38. Through counsel, Plaintiffs responded to Defendants’ August 31, 2022, letter and
their subsequent anonymous complaint in a September 8, 2022 letter. A copy of this letter is
attached hereto as Exhibit D.

39. In their September 8" letter, Plaintiffs objected to Defendants’ blatant and unlawful
threats to retaliate against them for exercising their First Amendment right to speak out on matters
of public concern and efforts to silence them from exercising this right in the future. Plaintiffs
demanded that Defendants certify in writing that they would not take any legal action against any
IAFF or Local 3217 officer over the Local 3217 Resolution. Plaintiffs also demanded that
Defendants withdraw the baseless workplace complaint against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston.
Defendants have refused Plaintiffs’ demands.

Count | — Violation of Plaintiffs’ Rights to Free Speech Under the First and Fourteenth
Amendments (42 U.S.C. § 1983) - Retaliation

40.  Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate Paragraphs 1 through 39.

41.  Through their conduct, Defendants unlawfully retaliated against Plaintiffs in
response to the Local 3217 Resolution.

42.  The Local 3217 Resolution constitutes constitutionally protected speech because it
involved matters of public concern over staffing shortages and how these shortages adversely
impacted the safety of the general public and fire fighters represented by Local 3217 and negatively

affected the level of service and standard of care provided by the FRD.

11
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43. Defendants’ threats against Plaintiffs, including the threat of ramifications because
of the Local 3217 Resolution, the threat of a lawsuit for defamation and other torts if the Local
3217 Resolution was not retracted and an apology issued by Plaintiffs, and the anonymous
workplace complaint made by Defendants against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston leading to a
disciplinary investigation, was in response to Plaintiffs’ constitutionally protected speech.

44, In threatening to take and taking these actions against Plaintiffs, Defendants acted
under color of state law in that they sought to use their positions as high level FRD officials to
silence and chill the Plaintiffs’ constitutionally protected speech.

45.  Defendants’ threats against Plaintiffs, including the threat of ramifications because
of the Local 3217 Resolution, the threat of a lawsuit for defamation and other torts if the Local
3217 Resolution was not retracted and an apology issued by Plaintiffs, and the anonymous
workplace complaint made by Defendants against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston have adversely
affected Plaintiffs’ constitutionally protected speech and willingness to exercise that
constitutionally protected speech in the future.

46.  As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs
have suffered, and continue to suffer, a deprivation of their constitutionally protected rights,
economic injury, and irreparable harm.

47.  As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs
have suffered, and continue to suffer, mental and emotional distress, humiliation, anxiety,
embarrassment, and discomfort.

Count Il — Violation of Plaintiffs’ Rights to Free Speech Under the First and

Fourteenth Amendments (42 U.S.C. § 2286123; Chilling of Constitutionally Protected

48. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate Paragraphs 1 through 47.

12
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49.  Through their conduct in response to the Local 3217 Resolution, Defendants
unlawfully chilled Plaintiffs’ freedom of speech rights.

50.  The Local 3217 Resolution constitutes constitutionally protected speech because it
involved matters of public concern over staffing shortages and how these shortages adversely
impacted the safety of the general public and fire fighters represented by Local 3217 and negatively
affected the level of service and standard of care provided by the FRD.

51.  Defendants’ threats against Plaintiffs, including the threat of ramifications because
of the Local 3217 Resolution, the threat of a lawsuit for defamation and other torts if the Local
3217 Resolution was not retracted and an apology issued by Plaintiffs, and the anonymous
workplace complaint made by Defendants against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston adversely
affected Plaintiffs’ constitutionally protected speech and willingness to exercise that
constitutionally protected speech in the future.

52. In threatening to take and taking the actions against Plaintiffs, Defendants acted
under color of state law in that they sought to use their positions as high level FRD officials to
silence and chill the Plaintiffs’ constitutionally protected speech.

53.  Defendants’ threats against Plaintiffs, including the threat of ramifications because
of the Local 3217 Resolution, the threat of a lawsuit for defamation and other torts if the Local
3217 Resolution was not retracted and an apology issued by Plaintiffs, and the anonymous
workplace complaint made by Defendants against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston were in response
to the statements made in the Local 3217 Resolution and served to chill and intimidate Plaintiffs

into silence.

13
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54, As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs
have suffered, and continue to suffer, a deprivation of their constitutionally protected rights,
economic injury, and irreparable harm.

55. As a direct, foreseeable, and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs
have suffered, and continue to suffer mental and emotional distress, humiliation, anxiety,
embarrassment, and discomfort.

Count Il — Declaratory Judgment and Injunction (28 U.S.C. § 2201 et seq.)

56.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege Paragraphs 1 through 55.

57.  Anactual controversy has arisen and now exists between Plaintiffs and Defendants
concerning Plaintiffs’ rights under the United States Constitution. A judicial declaration is
necessary and appropriate at this time as to Count I and |1, above.

58.  Plaintiffs desire a judicial determination of their rights against Defendants as they
pertain to Plaintiffs’ rights to speak about matters of public concern without being subject to
retaliation, intimidation, or adverse employment actions.

59. To prevent further violation of Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights by Defendants, it is
appropriate and proper that a declaratory judgment issue, pursuant to 28 U.S.C § 2201 and Fed. R.
Civ. P. 57, declaring Defendants’ actions unconstitutional.

60.  Pursuant to 28 U.S.C § 2202 and Fed. R. Civ. P. 65, this Court should issue a
permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from retaliating against, intimidating or taking adverse
employment actions against Plaintiffs as a result of the Local 3217 Resolution. Defendant MWAA
should also be enjoined for continuing the disciplinary investigation based on the meritless,
retaliatory anonymous complaint made by Defendants against Plaintiffs Lynch and Deniston.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request a judgment against Defendants as follows:

14
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1. A declaration stating that Defendants’ actions violated Plaintiffs’ right to free
speech on matters of public concern.
2. A permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from retaliating against, intimidating
or taking adverse employment actions against Defendants as a result of the Local 3217 Resolution.
3. Monetary damages in an amount to be determined by the Court to compensate
Plaintiffs for the deprivation of fundamental rights.
4. Plaintiffs’ reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and disbursements in this action
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 1988.
5. Award such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
JURY DEMAND: PLAINTIFFS DEMAND A TRIAL BY JURY ON ALL
COUNTS SO TRIABLE
Respectfully Submitted,
/s/ John R. Mooney
John R. Mooney (VA Bar No. 22212)
Mooney, Green, Saindon, Murphy & Welch, P.C.
1920 L Street, NW, Suite 400
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 783-0010

(202) 783-6088 facsimile
jmooney@mooneygreen.com

[s/ Mark J. Murphy
Mark J. Murphy (DC Bar No. 453060)
Mooney, Green, Saindon, Murphy & Welch, P.C.
1920 L Street, NW, Suite 400
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 783-0010
(202) 783-6088 facsimile
mmurphy@mooneygreen.com
Pro Hac Vice application to be submitted

Counsel for Plaintiffs

Dated: September 13, 2022

15
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